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A lot has been written about the logic liaison of historical events and plenty of significant conclusions have been made
consequently. Present and future are tightly linked with each other and their interrelation defines the peculiarities of historical
events.

By the end of the 20th century, the weakening and destruction of the Soviet Union started, as a result of which a different
kind of political reality emerged in Eastern Europe as well as in almost whole Asia. Thus, an irreversible process of appearing
the new states and redistribution of the political powers began. In this rough period, Georgia managed to declare independence
and begin to construct a new sovereign republic. However, this road that many had envisaged to be very simple turned out to
be extremely difficult and tragic. It became clear shortly after the declaration of the Independence that the maintenance of the
state territorial integrity and sovereignty would require considerable political experience and adequate steps to be taken. The
problem of separatism was emerged in two historical parts of Georgia — Tskhinvali region (Samachablo, former Soviet Social-
istic District of Autonomous South Ossetia) and in Autonomous Republic of Abkhazia (former Soviet Socialistic Republic of
Autonomous Abkhazia). In both regions, separatists were backed and managed by reactionary Russian forces. All this prepared
a fertile ground for the new stage of Russian-Georgian war, which from time to time grew into armed conflict. As a result of this,
we received a broken up Georgia, 20% territory of which is occupied by Russia. Besides, the Autonomous Republic of Abkhazia
and Tskhinvali region (Samachablo) were acknowledged by Russia as independent states. Unfortunately, some other countries
have also shared this recognition.

The current reality should not be considered as the consequence of solely the political life of the end of the 20th century.
It began two centuries earlier. Within this period, tens of military confrontations had taken place between the two countries, as
well as strict punitive actions were carried out against those Abkhazians who participated side by side with Georgians in the
fight for Georgian independence.

Within all this period, Russia fought in multiple directions in order to bring Abkhazia — inseparable part of Georgia - under
its control. Naturally, Russia was also targeting at historical-cultural values of the mentioned territory, on which the ancient
Georgian inscriptions and mural paintings dating back to consequent epochs have been preserved.

Georgia is one of the most ancient Christian countries. It is commonly known that in the 50-70s of the first century, Chris-



tianity was preached here by the Apostles Andrew, Simon and Matata. The last two are buried in Georgia — Matata — in Adjara
and Simon — in Abkhazia.

There are almost 8000 churches and monasteries in the whole Georgia. The Christian architectural monuments that have
reached the modernity in Abkhazia are characterized by certain peculiarities. However, they have something in common with
contemporary monuments of Eastern and Western Georgia as long as they had been constructed in one and the same ethno-cul-
tural environment. The majority of them is included in the list of Cultural Heritage Monuments of Georgia.

In 1993-2008, following the Abkhazian occupation by Russia, over 350 000 locals, mainly of Georgian ethnicity, quit their
historical homeland. Consequently, the ethnic picture of Abkhazia was artificially changed. After that, the occupants carried on
the business started by their predecessors — transforming the geographic names of the Abkhazian territory. Here with the inten-
tion to convert everything to the Russian manner, they are started to change or destroy the interiors and exteriors of churches.
All these efforts were and are directed to demolishing the historical trace of Georgians, to the falsification of history, to the rus-
sification of the local population, including Abkhazians, and to the final assimilation of the region.

In the upcoming collection, monuments of particular historical-cultural importance have been included. Attached is the
list of those shrines of Abkhazia that have been conferred the status of National Importance Monument and Cultural Heritage
Monument. By publishing this compilation, we try to give short information to the citizens of our friend countries, as well as to
those who are interested in the issue of Abkhazia, and specialists too, about the cultural heritage that is located in the occupied
territory and tell them what kind of vandal activities were carried out towards them, as well as about the feasible threats in future
if the Status Quo is retained.

We hope that by means of the aid of international commonwealth and respective organizations, it will become possible to
stop the process of destroying the Georgian cultural heritage in Abkhazia as long as we believe that this is not only the richness
of Georgians and Abkhazians but also, they possess universal cultural significance, for they are inseparable parts of the world
civilization.
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DOLMENS OF ABKHAZIA

PLACE OF DISCOVERY: Georgia, the Autonomous Re-
public of Abkhazia, the villages of Eshera, Azanta, Otkhara,
Achandara, Gorana, Kulanurkhva, Shroma, Dou Pass, river
Psou gorge and elsewhere and etc.

DESCRIPTION: It seems likely that dolmens were family
burials, discovered in Abkhazian territory. The construction of
the earliest dolmens of Abkhazia began in the second half of
the 3rd Mill. Better built and vaster in size are dolmens built in
the Mid Bronze Age (first half of the 1st Mill. B.C.)

Eshera dolmens are best studied archaeologically. Dol-
mens of Abkhazia were constructed of four (on each side)
massive flat stones set vertically and roofed by the similar
stone (weight of individual stones exceeds 50 t.). Some dol-
mens are provided with a stone slab on the floor. The dolmens
are of a trapezoid plan. A round hole (diameter - 0,4 m.) is
cut in the wide front wall, which is predominantly oriented
towards South or South-East. The hole was locked with a stone
plug. Halved joints, arranged for the sake of solidity, are often
found on the lateral walls and floor slabs, from the outside,
large stones are edged around the walls.

In the Dolmens apart from disorderly scattered bones
have been found axes, spear tips, a variety of headpieces, pot-
tery and etc.
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CURRENT CONDITION: Today, a large part of dolmens is
neglected and there is a threat of their destruction. The Sepa-
rate exhibits are kept at the Georgian National Museum.

DOLMENS HAVE BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF
NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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SOKHUMI STELLA

PLACE OF DISCOVERY: Georgia, the Autonomous Re-
public of Abkhazia, Sokhumi municipality, near of the river
Besleti.

DESCRIPTION: Sokhumi Stella is a grave stone, which
was made of the marble and was found in 1953 at the estu-
ary of the river Besleti and Black Sea, in the old part of the
town now covered with the sea. Stella (Height 157; Width
92), is square and had three figures on it. The dead is de-
picted seated in the armchair. His right hand entwines a
naked child, who is located at his knees. At the background
is depicted a young woman clad in the Antique peplum. She
has a small box in her left hand; probably the jewels given
to the dead are placed there. This is the scene of bidding
farewell to the dead person. The whole composition, décor
and the technique is typical to the early antique art and must
be dated from the 430-420 B.C. The whole composition of
the Stella is made under the influence of the antique style.
The Stella must have been made for a Greek man and was
erected on his grave. This fact proves the existence of the
important caste of the Greek newcomers in Sokhumi.

CURRENT CONDITION: Stella is kept at the museum of
Sokhumi. It is impossible to study, because the territory is
currently occupied by Russia.

bggms esgpmos bembadol d9bgnddo

Stella is kept at the museum of Sokhumi
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TSANDRIPSHI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Abkha-
zia, Gagra municipality, small town of Gantiadi.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Experts of
the respective field have suggested that it is the church, which
was built by the Byzantine Emperor Justinian I- (527-565)
for Abazg tribes when they got Christianized. In the ruins of
the Basilica was found a fragment of the tombstone with the
Greek uncial inscription. It seems most likely that the inscrip-
tion belonged to the tomb of a clerical or secular dignitary of
Abkhazia. Name of the buried is lost. The inscription is dated
back to the 6th c.

The church is a three-nave basilica, built of medium-size
limestone Quadra of regular shape and flat brick of varied siz-
es.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occupied
by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and to
conduct the respective works. The church is in a heavy phys-
ical condition. But we have information that, it needs urgent
conservation and restoration works.

TSANDRIPSHI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE
STATUS OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT

3396 0mo bsgo / lateral nave
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OLD GAGRA BASILICA

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Abkha-
zia, town of Gagra.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: Church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: The
church is dated back to the 6th century. The church is repre-
sented by three-church basilica. It is constructed with roughly
defined ashlar stones, with straight rows. Entrance of the main
nave is located in the west part, whilst to the south nave - from
the elongated wall. The south nave is connected to the main
church with two small doors. One door leads us to the north
side chapel, which has its own independent entrance into the
west wall. The main church is lit with three windows on the
south wall and with one window each on the western wall and
in alters. The design of the church is surrounded by “Bolnuri”
crosses, which is located on the east door timpani and next
to the window. The old Gagra basilica is very similar to the
three-church basilica samples spread in Georgia in the 6th -
9th centuries, particularly, to the architecture of the churches
constructed in Eastern Georgia.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the appropriate works. But we have information
that the appearance of the church is satisfactory, the roof needs
a change.

GAGRA BASILICA HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT

ab@9G0g60, LedbGgma 3gegma / interior, south wall
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DRANDA CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Abkha-
zia, Gulripshi municipality, village of Dranda.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the domed
church.

HISTORICAL- ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Dranda
church is the monument of the 6th and 8th centuries. Dranda
was built by the order of the Byzantine Emperor Justinian the
Great was built in 551 and in the beginning was under the
authority of Constantinople Church, the eparchy of Abazgia.

In the 8th century, Dranda became a center of Abkhazia
that means a patriarchal Eparchy centre of Western Georgia,
which existed here till the 17th century. The last bishop of
Dranda Gabriel was forced to go to Jerusalem in the result of
Abazian and Apsarian invasions.

In the 8th century, Dranda became a center of Abkhazia
that means a patriarchal Eparchy centre of Western Georgia,
which existed here till the 17th century. The last bishop of
Dranda Gabriel was forced to go to Jerusalem as the result of
Abazian and Apsarian invasions.

In 1637, the church was completely burnt and robbed by
the Turkish conquerors. In 1878, during the Russian-Turkish
war, the church was burned for the second time and mural
paintings were destroyed. From 1880 year, under the Russian
colonial authority period, was implemented “Russification” of
Dranda together with the other churches. The Russian style,
onion-shaped dome, was installed onto Dranda in order to de-
stroy the Georgian historic trace.
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In 1928, the communists abolished the church, the part of
which was transformed into the building of penitentiary facili-
ty, prison, and the rest of the space was turned onto the district
committee of Gulripshi region and the boarding school.

In the 1970s, restoration of Dranda Church was imple-
mented by the leadership of Georgian professor Tsintsadze
and it regained its original appearance.

The church is built of brick and cobble-stone. Based on
its building technique, plan and proportions it shows affinity
with the samples of the Byzantine architecture. In the cross
plan the shape of a three arms are rectangular. The entrance on
this lockers are from south and north arms. From the outside
cross is inserted in the rectangular form, the east side has a
faceted apse. At the same time, builders of the Dranda church,
seem most likely to be also familiar with the Georgian church-
es, namely, the church of Holy Cross in Mtskheta, or any other
similar structure — otherwise, no explanation can be found to
the minor arches on the upper part of the east facade, uniting
three protruded apses; analogies of this motif can be found on
the quoted churches only.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, on account which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the necessary works.

In 2011 the de facto government of Abkhazia gave 40
churches, including Dranda, to the so-called “Abkhazian
Church” in unlimited use. After its occupation, it was painted
with white color at the Russian-style, inserted approximate-
ly ten silver-painted windows, in this process the walls of the
church were executed; CCTV (contemporary, Video surveil-
lance) system was installed; the soil around church was com-
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pletely removed, so that the archaeological research has not
taken place. Reconstruction of the church destroyed unique
baptize fonts, which date back to the 7th century.

DRANDA CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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AMBARA CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Abkha-
zia, Gudauta municipality, on the cape of Miusera.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the church, the
Fence and the rubbles of secular buildings.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Ambara
preserved early medieval Georgian architecture complex -
church (7th -8th cc.), Fence (Middle Ages) and the ruins of
secular buildings (10th c.). The church is adorned with rough-
ly processed ashlar stones that have survived almost in its
original form. It is the so-called three-nave basilica building.
On the west side, the church has two-story narthexes and up-
per gallery. The main nave vault was restored in the late mid-
dle ages. Ambara three-nave basilica represents an important
example of this type’s architectural monuments.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the necessary works. The church is in a heavy phys-
ical condition, it needs urgent rehabilitation.

AMBARA CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT

0b@ 960960, bgwo smdmbsgmgmali3qb / interior, view to the east
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BZI1PI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Abkha-
zia, village of Bzipi.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the fenced for-
tress and the church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL  DESCRIPTION: The
church of Bzipi fortress is a domed structure of “cross-in-
square” type with three projecting apses and is dated to the
second half of the 9th c. Its walls are faced with hewn stone,
doors and windows are adorned with the terminations. To the
east of the church, remains of an older church are visible.

Bzipi fortress consisted of two parts. The old road crossed
the courtyard of the lower part. The fortress would lock the
Bzipi gorge and a pass over the river. Rectangular and semi-cir-
cular towers, buttresses and a porch were embodied in the for-
tress enclosure built of well hewn limestone Quadra.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the appropriate works.

But we have information that, the church and fortress are
in poor physical condition. The church has become complete
destruction.

BZIPI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF
CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT
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BITCHVINTA CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gagra municipality, small town of Bitchvinta.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the domed
church, the old settlement and the hall church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Accor ding
to the church legend, in the first century in Bitchvinta suburbs
St. Andria preached and that’s why Bitchvinta Episcopal Ca-
thedral is called “St. Andrea church” Current domed church
was constructed in the 10th-11th centuries. At the end of the
3th century and at the beginning of the 4th century Bitchvinta
became a significant religious center, as evidenced by bishop
Stratofile’s participation in the first world church council in
325. For centuries in Bitchvinta the religious center of western
Georgia was located, which in the middle of the 16th centu-
ry after invasion of mountaineers was moved to Gelati. In the
17th century Bitchvinta church was abandoned and did not
have any functions. In the 18th century the church was struck
by lightning and was seriously damaged.

Bitchvinta church represents the elongated cross-domed
building by the plan, which in the west has narthexes and in
the east - the 3 protruding apses. It should be noted that in
Georgia narthex is rarely met, and protruding apses are char-
acterized to the early period churches of Georgia, later, to
the west Georgia, particularly, Black Sea Coast monuments
(though we can find it in some places of east Georgia). The
west arm is equipped with tripartite upper gallery, the dome is
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based on the walls of alters and two pillars. Bichvinta church
is constructed with interchangeably formed flat bricks and
horizontal stone rows. The church was painted inside, but in
the second part of the 19th century it was totally plastered,
repainted in white, that resulted in destruction of old mural
painting. So was the small grave with apses, built in the south-
west corner of the narthex. The mural paintings preserved on
its wall date from the second part of the 16th century. In the
1830s, by the order of Russian emperor the church was reha-
bilitated, was changed the shape of dome, was plastered and
whitewashed the facades, after which the construction had
changed its appearance and distorted. In the 1960s, by the rec-
ommendation of Giorgi Chubinashvili and by the leadership
of Giorgi Tsintsadze was held restoration works in the church,
plasters was removed, the roof was changed and the garden
was arranged and was restored the original form of the church.

During the restoration works in the church interior was
found a small fragments of old mural painting. Around the
church there are several buildings with different meaning,
small churches, chapels, the settlement and economic build-
ings of the church.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which is impossible to study and to
conduct the according works.

The main church needs a replacement of roof. The physical
condition of construction inside the complex is very difficult.

BITCHVINTA CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE
STATUS OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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BICHVINTA MOSAIC

PLACE OF DISCOVERY: Georgia, the Autonomous Repub-
lic of Abkhazia, Gagra municipality, small town of Bichvinta.

DESCRIPTION: Bichvinta mosaic is a sample of the 6th c.
mosaic painting, by which floor of a 4th c. three-naved basilica
was embellished. The Ruins of the basilica were discovered on
the Bichvinta Cape in 1952 during the archaeological excava-
tions.

Mosaic is made of rectangular pieces of the local stone
(white, cornel-red, yellow, black), with cleanly trimmed brick
lime solution. The background is orange. The mosaic is exe-
cuted by the local craftsmen. Greek inscription, embodied in
the ornamentation, mentions the donor — Oreli. Artistic char-
acter of the Bichvinta mosaic shows affinity with the mosaic
painting of the Hellenized countries of the Near East — Syria
and Palestine.

In the middle of the apse a large monogram, the so called
Chrism adorned with the “alpha” and “omega” signs, is located.
The Monogram is flanked with a wide stripe of inter-weaved
Acanthus leaves, encircling the entire composition as if a frame.
To the left of the monogram, depicted is a blossomed plant
twig with plants and birds. The composition is embellished
with the geometric ornamentation (rhombus, semi-rhombus
circles). Mosaic in the narthex is of the decorative character.
Minor areas of varied shape, formed by interlaces, bear mosaic
images of birds and fish. At the entrance depicted is a fountain
with birds on its both sides. Various parts of the church also
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bear mosaic fragments — images of stags and small deer.

CURRENT CONDITION: At present fragments of the Bich-
vinta mosaic are kept at the Georgian national museum.
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PROCESSIONAL CROSS FROM BICHVINTA

PLACE OF DISCOVERY: Georgia, the Autonomous Repub-
lic of Abkhazia, Gagra municipality, small town of Bichvinta.

DESCRIPTION: The cross is donated to the Bichvinta ca-
thedral church of the Virgin by Eudemon Chkhetidze, cathol-
icon - patriarch of Western Georgia. It was made by the well-
known skilled craftsman Mamne approximately in 1565 and
represents his last work.

The Asomtavruli inscriptions name secular persons -
the donors of the church: king of Imereti Bagrat the Third
(1510- 1565), Queen Martha and their son George the Sec-
ond (1565-1585); the rulers of Odishi - Mamia the Third
Dadiani (1512-1532) and his son Leon the First Dadiani
(1532-1572); the donor of the cross - Eudemon Chkhetidze,
Catholicon of Abkhazia, the master craftsmen Mamne and
his spouse Ulumpia.

THE CROSS CONTAINS: the cross, Zion and the gilded
solver handle. Material: gold, gilded silver, precious stones.
Total height — 159 sm. Size: of the cross - 57.5x 17.5 sm; of the
reliquary - 16 x 8.3 x 8.3..

Based on general forms and structure the sample belongs
to the group of crosses widespread in Georgia in X-XI c. The
widening arms of the cross shape medallions on the edges.
Front side of the cross bears the carved images of crucified
Christ, the Virgin, St. John Evangelist, Archangel Gabriel, St.
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Nicolas Marlikianite. The Zion bears an image of the Virgin
with the Child in Her hands. The images of the Apostles Peter
and Paul, Archangels Michael and Gabriel, preachers of Chris-
tianity in Georgia - Apostles St. Andrew and Simeon Canaan-
ite, who is buried in Abkhazia, also St. John Baptist, St. John
Chrysostom, bishops - Grigol theologian and Basil the Great
with scrolls in their hands. The images are accompanied with
explanatory inscriptions in Asomtavruli.

CURRENT CONDITION: Cross is kept at the Georgian na-
tional museum.
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BICHVINTA GOSPELS

DESCRIPTION: Bichvinta Gospels is written on paper in
the 12th c. in nuskhuri script, in two columns. it contains 230
pages (31 x 23 cm.).

Bichvinta codex was put in a chased cover and donated to
the Bichvinta church of the Virgin by the Shervashidzes “for
the bliss and supplication of the sinful soul”.

The manuscript is illustrated by the images of the Evange-
lists, headpieces and decorated initials. Preserved are images
of the Evangelists Mark and Luke.

Mark the Evangelist's image takes up the whole page. It
is enclosed in the decorative frame. Above the frame in the
middle there is an image of an eagle. It is a symbolic image
of this Evangelist, which usually in the Greek and Georgian
manuscripts is placed within the framework of the Evangelist
miniatures.

The text of the Gospel Luka begins with headpiece. It is
included in the left column of the text. Artistic initial is tied
to the painting of headpiece. The ornament represents a floral
motive. Blue color prevails in the whole character.

CURRENT CONDITION: At present Bichvinta Gospels is
kept at the National Centre of Manuscripts of Georgia.
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LIKHNI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gudauta municipality, village of Likhni.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the domed
church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: The cross
domed construction of the 10th century is erected in the mid-
dle of the village Likhni. It is constructed with the straight
rows of well refined ashlar stone. Small sized dome is based on
four freely standing piers. In the west part is constructed up-
per gallery. The facades are simple, the surfaces are distributed
with only window apertures. From the eastern part are turn-
ing the three protruded apses. The architecture and painting
of Likhni church represents the main source about the church
itself. There are preserved the paintings sign of the 10th-11th
centuries, also paintings of the 14th century in Likhni Church,
which is specified with neat coloring, dynamism and expres-
siveness of the several elongated figures. Famous French Kart-
velologist, Mari Brose was the first to record antiquities of the
Likhni church; he had copied several Georgian inscriptions
from the church walls, among them, inscription of 1066 nar-
rating about the apparition of a comet. The same historic event
is also mentioned in the chronicle of the Kiev princedom and
one of the Chinese chronicles.

Before, Russian-Georgian war Likhni church was rich
with epigraphic monuments with over 17 mural painting as
well as Biblical scenes, the Georgian and Greek explanatory
inscriptions about Saints in Georgian asomtavruli and mkhe-
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druli (secular) scripts, which mention high ranking secular
persons: kings of the united Georgian kingdom - Bagrat IV,
George II and the representatives of the clergy.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, on account of which it is impossible to study
and to conduct the necessary works.

But we have information that, Likhni church construc-
tion and the mural painting is in quite a hard condition. In
2010 de-facto authority of Abkhazia started the conservation
works, outside the church, installed the temporary covering
was installed. The works were held without the professional
restorers, because of which there is a great threat of erasing the
church authenticity and its historical sign.

LIKHNI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF
NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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MOKVI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Ochamchire municipality, village of Mokvi.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: The domed
church.

HISTORICAL -ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Over the
centuries, Mokvi was a significant centre of the Georgian cul-
ture, where manuscripts were copied and old codices were ren-
ovated. Up to now preserved are manuscripts from the Mokvi
church library, bearing names of the persons active in Mokvi.
Among Mokvi antiquities of special significance and artistic
value is the famous Mokvi Four Gospels, commissioned by
Daniel Mokveli (Bishop of Mokvi) in 1300. Mokvi church,
the centre of such a vast cultural activity, was also rich in epi-
graphic monuments. However, at present, only an inscription
on Mokvi bell-tower is preserved.

Mokvi Episcopacy was established in the 10th c., but
Mokvi, as one of the most significant centre of the Georgian
culture, experienced special efflorescence from the 13th c. on-
wards. Georgian literary sources have preserved names of the
bishops of Mokvi, whose contribution to the Georgian culture
is hard to undervalue, such as Grigol Mokveli, Daniel Mokve-
li, Abraam Mokveli, Eptvime Sakvarelidze, Pilipe Chkhetidze
and others.
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Mokvi church has a long history. It was substantially reno-
vated and painted in the reign of David IV the Builder (1089-
1125); however, no traces of these mural paintings are left at
present in the church. In the 1980s, fragments of the presum-
ably 15th c. mural paintings and numerous other Georgian in-
scriptions were discovered here.

It is a cross-in-square domed church with chapels along-
side the naves. East side has three protruded apses. The middle
apse of alter is horseshoe shaped from the inside, and has five
facets in the outside. The dome is erased on four pillars, which
are in the centre of the buildings. The sail is the way to move
from the square to dome neck. The dome’s twelve-facet neck
is low. The building is adorned with hewn stone. The facades
are simple, without any ornaments. The smooth surfaces are
divided into two tiers, by the row of the apertures.

Current condition: The territory is currently occupied
by Russia, on account of which it is impossible to study and to
conduct the appropriate works. But we have information that,
the church’s roof needs changes.

THE MOKVI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE
STATUS OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT

06960960, msmgda / interior, arches

Lsg@om bgwo / general view
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MOKVI GOSPELS

DESCRIPTION: The manuscript was rewritten in 1300 by
Daniel, Bishop of Mokvi and donated to the Mokvi church of
the Virgin. It is shown by the attached sheet at the end of the
manuscript, where the Virgin with the Child and Daniel Bish-
op himself are portrayed. On one of the miniatures, the do-
nor — Daniel, Bishop of Mokvi - is represented kneeling in a
prayer before the Virgin standing with the Child in her hands.
Above the image of Daniel Bishop there is a manuscript writ-
ten in Asomtavruli, which, once the allegory is opened, reads
in that way: “Daniel the ArchBishop from Mokvi, Mokveli”.

The copyist of Mokvi Gospel is Ephraim. Ephraim in the
scientific literature is also considered as the author of Mokvi
Gospel miniatures and decoration.

In the eighties of the nineteenth century, Mokvi Gospel
was preserved in the book storage (library) of Gelati Monas-
tery (the monastery of the 11th century in west Georgia). In
1921, when the Soviet annexation was carried out, it was ex-
ported to France with the other Georgian national treasures
on Ekvtime Takaishvili’s initiative (a well-known politician
and public figure of independent Georgia of 1918-1921). The
national wealth was returned to Georgia only in 1945 year.

The manuscript is adorned with the vaults, headpieces,
initial letters and 157 miniatures. Mokvi Gospels are written
on a parchment, in nuskhuri script, in two columns. It con-
tains 329 pages (30 x 23,5 cm.). Miniatures of the Mokvi Gos-
pels are painted on gold, which is a unique case. Painter and
copyist is Ephraim.

CURRENT CONDITION: At present Mokvi Gospels is kept
at the National Centre of Manuscripts of Georgia.
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ILORI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Ochamchire municipality, village of Ilori.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX:: the church,
the bell tower.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: The 11th
century church of Saint George in Ilori is a shrine of utmost
importance, located in Western Georgia. For a long time it
represented a religious saving place of church and monasteries
of the north-west part of Odishi. The Chalice of Bedia (10th
century) and other relics were preserved in this church.

The inscriptions on church of Saint George in Ilori have
significant historical value for the development of Georgian
Alphabet, as well as for the survey of Ilori church and in gen-
eral, that of Georgian history.

It’s significant, that the inscriptions of the Church of Saint
George represent all the three development stages of Georgian
Alphabet: Asomtavruli, Nuskhakhutsuri, and Mkhedruli. In-
scriptions date back to the church construction period - the
first quarter of the 11th century; they are interesting because
all the three of development stages of the Georgian Alphabet
are dated with the same period; the same person is the author
of all inscriptions.

This single-nave church, terminated with an apse, has an-
nexes from the north, south and west. The interior is lit by six

Lsdbégoo goleea geszgmgdals dgdwqa / southern fagade after recostruction
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windows. On the east fagade there are five stones with an old
Georgian inscriptions, these are also dated to the first quarter
of the 11th century. The ornamented mouth and termination
of the western window have been preserved, dating back to
the 11th century. Inside the fronton, there is an ornamented
rectangular tile, bearing the image of the cross, whilst at the
eastern facade there is a relief image of St. George.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the appropriate works.

In 2010, the Abkhazian separatists and Russian occupants
installed Russian dome on the 11th century Georgian church
in order to erase totally any Georgian sign off the external fa-
cades; internal ones were partially repainted in white, the east-
ern part, where the Georgian inscriptions had been carved,
is totally plastered. Contemporary air-conditioners have been
installed in the church.

ILORI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF
NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT

bgeo LsdbEgo-©slsgmgmoEsb gs@szqgmgdsdey
view from south-west until recostruction
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BEDIA MONASTERY

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia. Ochamchire municipality, village of Bedia.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: The Church of
the Virgin, the Episcopal House and the bell tower.

HISTORICAL - ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: As ev-
idenced by the historic sources, complex was erected in late
10th c., ca. 999, by Bagrat III Bagrationi, the first king of the
united Georgian kingdom, who, as stated by the Georgian
chronicler, “made an Episcopacy out of it”. The church of the
Virgin, erected in the centre of the monastic courtyard, is the
main church of the monastery. To its west is the two-storied
palace of metropolitans of Bedia. The church of the Virgin was
considerably transformed on the turn of the 13th c. to the 14th
c. and in the 15th c. The bell-tower is a 12th-14th cc. structure,
while the Episcopal palace was built in the 16th c. by Anton
Zhuanisdze, Georgian Metropolitan of Bedia. Three layers of
mural painting decoration are preserved in the church interi-
or, which date back the 10th-11th, 13th-14th, and 16th-17th
cc. bell-tower, ground floor of which functions as a gate to the
monastery, while from the south the two-storied Episcopal
palace is adjoined.

Facades of the Bedia church, its interior mural paintings
and ecclesiastic objects preserved lapidary inscriptions in
Georgian asomtavruli (uncial) script, bearing evidences on
the construction, renovation and restoration of the church.
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Over the centuries, Bedia Episcopal See was one of the most
significant ecclesiastical, cultural and educational centre of
Georgia. Archbishop Anton Zhuanisdze had established a rich
library in the Bedia monastery, where old manuscripts were
renovated and restored, theological treatises were translated
and the library collection was enriched with new manuscripts.
Bedia monastic complex is a symbol of unity and indivisibility
of Georgia. Bagrat III, the first king of the united Georgian
kingdom and his mother, Queen Gurandukht are buried in
Bedia.

Bedia monastery landscape characteristic to the Middle
Ages Georgian architecture was being created on such an en-
semble of planning. A church capped with a cupola represent-
ed the main architectural element of the ensemble.

The complex was surrounded with a fence. On its west
side, in the line of the fence wall, there is a bishop’s palace and
a doorway included.

The ruins of the bishop’s palace are located in the west of
the church, in approximately 50 meters’ distance. In the begin-
ning, it consisted of two stories. Nowadays, the second floor is
almost totally destroyed, only the fragments of the north-west
corner and western wall are remained.

The door that leads to the second store-room contains a
timpani stone bearing an inscription on it, in which the spir-
itual Georgian workers of the 16th century such as the arch-
bishop of Bedia, Anton Juanidze, and restorer Kirile Juanidze,
are mentioned. The arc entrance is adorned with decorative
ornaments.

Inter-story roofing was repaired during the restoration of
1968-69 the floor was concreted and onto it, an isolation stra-
tum was arranged from a thin layer of the tar, which prevents
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the first floor from water leakage.

The doorway is located in the western part of the complex,
on top of which a bell tower of the church was arranged. On
its west, on the fagade, there is an inscription in which Giorgi
Dadiani and King Constantine are mentioned, living in the
14th century. The building of the doorway is joined to the pal-
ace and is perceived as one whole. The doorway represents a
planning square.

The church with a cupola is the central building of the
complex, typically similar to so-called “inserted cross”. In the
plan, it is a cross inscribed in the rectangle. In the center of
the church, on the square that we see on the crossroads of the
cross arms, a cupola consisting of 14 facets is made by means
of sails, in which the windows of the same quantity are cut.
The cupola is based on two separately standing pillars in the
west, and on the apses in the east. The eastern arm of the cross
ends with an apse, whilst the remaining arms are rectangular.
The space that is left between the arms of the cross is filled
with two-storied store-rooms located beside the apses on the
east, and by additional spaces on the west. The smaller floor
located beside the apses represents a mass of entire wall, in
which a small door is cut.

The upper gallery is located on the second floor of the
northern and southern naves. One can ascend by a ladder. The
church has three entrances. A cupola is erased exactly in the
center of the church. From the outside, the church is built
with a cleanly trimmed sand-stone on the lime solution. All
the windows of the church are preserved. In the interior, their
contour is safe. On the facades, besides two of them, all the

S (i g - 7 IR 5

bgwo BOomm- pslsgmgmowesb / view from north-west

51




@0s. bsegdby 30, Mo bs@zdmols gs@s, gzgms Lae3dy-
@0 EsB0sbgdymoas, Bsdm(339b0moas Lser3zdmol Lsdomy.

XIX bsgz960b @sbslergmolsmgols dgeool Bsdséro 1339
3083907 5 3(3965691eMd00 P8BSO Y boggdmdsls e -
dmsEgqbes, dsg3®sd g7ddsmol oo bsfoemo dgdm@Rgboema
0gm s gslsegdols [ymdsy 390 0gm s3meoa. sdob dydwgy,
XX baogggbol @slsfgolido, Bodéols ,,a5656mg30L* dobbom
A9bds 396M-dcbsbzbgdds sBosbgdmema anddsmo LGrmmose

amﬁo(ma'b QS 00IMOE Boam'lmeog:)ab{];mo 'lso30(4)3 J3gdo dmb-
Lbgls.

3335306RI20  3RAMBIGIMBY: Bg0B G0 39306 967m0s
Algool dog@, Gols 4sdemi Bed@ol Iglfogms s Iglsdsdo-
Lo Lsdndomgdol dglergmagds  dgydemgdgmos.

23993 06gm@ds;z0s, G™3 ImbsbBg@®Bo ©sFggdmemas
“BadrglBegdsom bsdydsmgdo™, Gmdgmoi dgamobogols
dglsdemems, Logsemsmm smdmBbegl. so@gsb 0dmgds Jotr-
090 3350 dmbsbBGol ggemgols ©s olgmMonm geg-
b3gdbg. dog@sdy III-b g@glzs ggoemol 9.G. asdsa@gdomo
bsd9dsmgdols gegase ©s0gsGys.

3IR00L B3ddAl 3060FIdIRN 333l LIFSGMZIRMLs
JI6(M36IR0 360336IRMINL JIBIRNL LBIBTILN

52

windows are damaged. They have no adornments.

In the end of the 19th century, the Bedia Church already
represented a depopulated edifice, covered with plants, how-
ever, the big part of the cupola was preserved and the laying
of apses was better protected. After this, in the beginning of
the 20th century, with the aim to “renovate” the church, Rus-
sian monks and nuns totally removed the damaged cupola and
took out the easily removable stones.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, on account of which it is impossible to study
and to conduct the appropriate works.

But we have information that, in the monastery they
launched “restoration works”, because of which there is a great
threat of erasing the church authenticity, as a result of which
historic Georgian mural paintings are erased of the monastery
walls. Also, the mural painting of Bagrat the third has been
lost as a result of the so-called reinforcement works of the wall.

BEDIA CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF
NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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BEDIA CHALICE

DESCRIPTION: The chalice dates back to 999 and rep-
resents the most significant monument among Bedia Church
liturgical objects. It is an outstanding sample of the Georgian
goldsmith works. Only upper part of the chalice has been pre-
served unto now. The foot has been lost. One-line asomtavruli
inscription running along the upper edge of the chalice tells
that the chalice was donated by Bagrat the Third, first king of
the United Georgian Kingdom and his mother, Queen Guran-
dukht to Bedia church, built by them.

The Chalice used to have a golden foot too, on which
Georgian asomtavruli inscription narrates that it was remade
by the order of Bedia Metropolital Germane Chkhetidze in
the 16th century. The foot of the chalice was still preserved as
late as the 19th c., but by the end of the same century, it was
lost again.

This round chalice (height - 12.5 cm., diameter — 14 cm.)
is made of single pure gold sheet. Its surface is articulated into
12 segments with arched framing, bearing images of the Saints,
enthroned Christ in the middle of one side and the Virgin and
the Child - on the other. All images, except that of the Virgin,
are provided with the explanatory inscriptions.

CURRENT CONDITION: Bedia chalice is kept at the Geor-
gian National Museum.
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BEDIA GULANI

DESCRIPTION: Bedia Gulani is manuscript of 17th -18th
century. It consists liturgical books: the Gospel, Acts of the
Apostles, the Epistles of the Apostles, the twelve hymns, fast-
ing, passover, psalms, church assembly, typikon, a hagiograph-
ic for reading and etc. Gulani is a huge collection of liturgy
which was accessible to be purchased and manufactured only
by rich churches and monasteries. Donor of the manuscript is
Germane Chkhetidze, Metropolitan of Bedia had invited the
calligrapher Gabriel Lomsanidze from Shavsheti. The manu-
script is copied by two more calligraphers: Ambrosi Karga-
reteli and Svimon Evprateli. Two pages of the manuscript are
presented in the album.

Bedia Gulani contains 960 pages (45,5 x 33,5 cm.), in
nuskhuri (ecclesiastical) script, in two columns, in beautiful
handwriting. The ink is black, titles are marked in cinnabar.

CURRENT CONDITION: At present, Bedia Gulaniis kept at
the National Centre of Manuscripts of Georgia.
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CHURCH OF ST. SIMEON
THE CANAANITE

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gudauta municipality, small town of new Athoni.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL  DESCRIPTION: The
church’s initial construction dates back to the 7th -8th cc. To-
day’s construction is a sample of the 9th -10th cc. Georgian
architecture.

Based on the Georgian and foreign sources, St. Simeon
Canaanite, together with the St. Apostle Andrew, were the
first ever persons who preached Christianity in southern and
western Georgia, including Abkhazia in the 1st century A.D.
According to the memos of saint fathers, in 55 A.D St. Simeon
Canaanite was martyred by pagans on the cross and buried in
Nikopsia city, on the northern border of the historical Georgia
(Nikopsia- presently, Russian federation, the city krasnodar).

In the 4th century, to give a tribute to the memory of the
apostle, a small church was erected in New Athoni, which
was presumably built of wood. But in the following centu-
ries, a church was constructed out of the white hewn stone
that was restored several times, including one that took place
in the 1880s. Unto now, no mural paintings have been pre-
served from the church. Such Christian symbols as fish, lion
and cross relief images draws a spectator’s particular attention
in its architectural décor.
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CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the applicable works.

CHURCH OF ST. SIMEON THE CANAANITE
HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS OF NATIONAL
IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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KAMANI CHURCH

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Sokhumi municipality, near of the village Shroma.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Kamani
church initial construction seems likely to be ascribable to the
11th c. History of Kamani is linked with the name of St. John
Chrysostom, who exiled from the Constantinople to the Black
Seacoast, according to one of the versions, was buried on this
spot. The church represents a hall type building, which has a
few traces of restorations.

In the 19th c. the church was restored and it functioned
as a monastery. During the Soviet rule, Kamani church was,
naturally, non-functional, but in the 1990s the church was re-
stored and the nunnery was established by the Abkhazian pa-
triot Iuri Anua, who, together with Father Andrew Kurashvili,
the senior priest of the church, was executed by shooting in
1993 by the separatists.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study and
to conduct the suitable works. The physical condition of the
monument is poor. The church has cracks.

KAMANI CHURCH HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT

Log@om bgwo / general view
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TSEBELDA FORTRESS

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gudauta municipality, village of Tsebelda.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: watch towers,
ecclesiastical structures, remains of the palace, diverse defense
structures.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Accor dil’lg
to the Greek sources, Tsebelda fortress was one of the most
significant fortification structures of the Early Medieval Geor-
gia. As evidenced by Procopius of Caesarea, 6th c. Byzantine
historian, Tsebelda was a well-protected fortress, which played
a significant part in the defense system of the Lazika (territory
populated with western-Georgian tribe lazi) kingdom. Up to
now, remnants of the past glory of Tsebelda are preserved in
the ruins of the fortress, such as: watch towers, ecclesiastical
structures, remains of the palace, diverse defense structures.
In early 20th c. fragments of the mural painting were discov-
ered during the study of one of the fortress churches.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, on account of which it is impossible to study
and to conduct the pertinent works.
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TSEBELDA CHANCEL-BARRIER

PLACE OF DISCOVERY: Georgia, the Autonomous Repub-
lic of Abkhazia, Gulripshi municipality, village of Tsebelda.

DESCRIPTION: Among the small-size architectural sam-
ples of the Early Medieval centuries of Georgia, two tiles of
Chancel-barrier represent one of the most significant ones,
which were discovered in the 19th c. near Tsebelda village and
date back to the 7th-8th cc.

Tsebelda Chancel-barrier fragments bear a large number
of Old and New Testament scenes, as well as ornaments. Chan-
cel-barrier adorned with so many biblical scenes is unknown
in the Christian art; however, due to the mode and technique
of execution, Tsebelda tiles show close affinity with the small-
sized architectural monuments from other regions of Georgia.

CURRENT CONDITION: The main two part of Tsebelda
Chancel-barrier are kept at the Georgian National Museum.
Thilisi and small part of this Chancel-barrier is kept at the mu-
seum of Sokhumi.

365399680 Es3nmos bebadol d9bgnddo
fragment is kept at the museum of Sokhumi
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TSARCHE FORTRESS

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gali Municipality, village of Tsarche.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the castle, the
church.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Near the
village Tsarche, on the top of the high mountain is located the
castle, walls of which are almost destroyed. The fence of the
castle is followed by the relief of top of the mountain, thats
why its plan has an indecent elliptical shape, as it turns out,
the southern side of the castle followed to the stripe of the
rock and in the many places its bottom is sapped and brought
down. Almost the same is in the East. The only north arc has
been preserved on the 7-8 height. In the middle there is a nar-
row stone stair, to rise up to the combat path leading to the
fence of the castle. On the wall of up to the 2 meter thickness
there is constructed a fighters’ walking trail, on which there is
enough space for two persons to freely bypass.

Both ends of the castle are very strongly damaged, because
of this fact we don’t have any certain idea about its shapes. At
the end of the eastern part there has certainly been standing
a container, however whether it was one of the towers or the
long trailer we cannot say till the place is cleaned.

In the western end of the castle there are the greater mass-
es remained, but because of the damage there is also an un-
certainty. There is great mass on that point of the castle, above
which, on the height of 6-7 meters, is constructed the tow-
er-like structure with a trapezoidal plan, out of which current-
ly only the lower part has been remained.
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There is one more detail - a reservoir, which is situated in
the south-eastern section. It is almost filled. Its walls are well,
firmly plastered.

Though it’s true that the castle is damaged, but all of its
details point to the fact that it belongs to early times and rep-
resents one of the chains of the old castles.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is occupied by Rus-
sia, because of this fact it is impossible to study of the castle
and conduct appropriate works.

The walls of the castle are in a heavy physical condition
and it needs quick conservation.

TSARCHE FORTRESS HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT
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BAGRATI FORTRESS

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, near Sokhumi city, on the left bank of the river Besleti.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the fortress.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Bagrati
Fortress was renovated on the turn of the 10th -11th centuries
by Bagrat the 3rd, king of Georgia (978-1014). In 10th-14th
cc. It was a residence of Tskhumi noblemen. From the 16th c.
onwards, when the city moved to the west, to the right bank of
the river Besleti, it lost its significance and was desolated.

The fortress is oval-shaped in plan. Its walls are well pre-
served. The porch was defended by a rectangular tower. It used
to be a citadel of the medieval city Tskhumi (Sokhumi).

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study the
current condition and to conduct the suitable works. Fortress
walls are in heavy physical condition and need urgent conser-
vation.

BAGRATI FORTRESS HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT
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BRIDGE OF BESLETI

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-

khazia, not far from Sokhumi on the river Besleti.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: Not far
from Sokhumi, over the river Besleti, a single-span arched
bridge is arranged. The bridge is built of limestone tiles and is
faced with the hewn stone blocks, with the flat brick courses
included between the stone masonry courses. The bridge is a
monument of the medieval Georgian architecture, builder of
which had a good understanding of the capacity of the river.
Such a strong and technically high quality bridge should have
been built on a big trade road of certain political significance.
Analogies of Besleti’ s bridge are found in other regions of
Georgia, namely, Rkoni arched bridge in Kartli and Dandalo
bridge in autonomous republic of Adjara.

West side of the bridge bears a one-line asomtavruli in-
scription. The inscription is dated back to the late 10th-early
11th cc.

Although, the inscription mentions King Bagrat, out of
the great love to King Tamar (king of the United Georgian
Kingdom 1184-1213), the bridge was given her name.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently oc-
cupied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study
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and to conduct the appropriate works. The bridge needs to be
strengthened and cleaned from verdure.

BRIDGE OF BESLETI HAS BEEN GIVEN THE STATUS
OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT
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ABKHAZIAN NOBLEMEN -
SHERVASHIDZE’S PALACE

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gudauta municipality, village of Likhni.

CONSTRUCTION INSIDE THE COMPLEX: The palace.

Historical-Architectural description: The palace is located
in the outskirts of a vast field - “Likhtashta” On 26 July 1866,
anti-tsarist, anti-colonial rebellion of Abkhazia started here.
During the suppression of this rebellion in August 1866, Rus-
sian General-Lieutenant Svyatopol-Mirski, Governor of Ku-
taisi, burnt the palace down. From this enormous structure,
only the walls survived the fire.

Firstly, the palace was two-storied, built of diverse materi-
als (limestone, sandstone, brick, etc.). Several building layers
are discernible in the masonry of the walls, from which, older
was constructed in the 16th-17th cc. with limestone tiles. In
the 19th ¢ the palace was transformed and considerably ex-
tended.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study
and to conduct the related works. The palace is in a heavy
physical condition. It needs urgent conservation and resto-
ration works.

SHERVASHIDZE’S PALACE HAS BEEN GIVEN THE
STATUS OF NATIONAL IMPORTANCE MONUMENT

e i

Log@om bgwo / general view

75



Ins3560 strdsbols abBgGogéo / interior of main hall 3960d3q / entrance

76 77



23O SOXMBOL BMBILOIEO

dRJN@IRIBIGIMBY: s Jormnggemm, s3bsbgmals 838 mbmdosy-
6o (gl3ndmogs, agesgmol dgboiadsmodgdo, ©sds sb-

3o sombo.

JM33RIL30 33333520  63333(M3I30: @oaoﬁ)o, 1)03(*)6&[)@(4)(')
dgbmdgdo.

LBMGNIR-36IN0IFIBIGI0  IRFIGS: 1875 VSQB 0sbo-
39Mm3g sbsmo smmbols BgModmeosby, 03g@ool Jmsby,
Joeggembols bsbgzs@rznbdymol smmbol dmowsb (Lsdge-
dbgmosb) dnbymemds 3969dds (3. 356@9mgodmbols Bedséro
©s356Lgl. d9damddo, 1883-1896 (femgdda(y, sbsw smembdo
30dgmEadmes  LsdmbslBem 65390mdgdabs s g3mglools
d9d9b90emmds.

bsdmbsl@rm 3mddmgdlol ©slsgmgm gm@3qlol (396-
&® 30 50 IgBGasbo LsdGgzmms. Lsddgzmml J39dmm gsb-
3398105 dmbsbBMol Lo@@sdgbm, Gmdmol  3goemagdo
ImbsBnmos. Lsdmbsbgem 3md3emaglols (3968 3o smdsGror-
@os (3. 356@)9mg0odmbols, bymo a7ddsmom ©sg3306330690+-
o $§sodsco, MmIgmoacg 9. §. sbsmdabsbBon®o LB omomss
bsggdo s 0lg3zg Omame (3 bsB®s3gbm, Fogbowsb dnmosbswe
dmbs@mmaos.

3339306RI20 3R3MIVGIMB: @aﬁoémﬁmo md"JSoF)ab"Jgﬂ\ooo
Abgmol doge, ol g9dm3 Bedeol dgbfegms s dgbedsdo-
Lo Lsdndomgdol BsBedgds Bgudmadgmos.

OO0 S0IMENL 3MEILBIGL 30N60FIBIR0 533l
LO3dGMNZINML FIRGTIHIR( 3I3330RGIMBOL JIBROL LSBT0

78

NEW-ATHONI MONASTERY

LOCATION: Georgia, the Autonomous Republic of Ab-
khazia, Gudauta municipality, small town of New-Athoni.

CONSTRUCTIONS INSIDE THE COMPLEX: the church, the
monastic structures.

HISTORICAL-ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: In 1875
monks, who came from Greece, monasteries of Mount Atho-
ni, founded the church of St. Panteleimon on Mount Iveria,
on the territory of present New Athoni. in 1883-1896 as well.

In the centre of the west building 50 m. high bell-tow-
er is erected. In the lower part of the bell-tower, a monastic
refectory is located. In the middle of the monastic complex,
five-domed church of St. Panteleimon is erected, in the archi-
tecture of which traits of the so called Neo Byzantine style are
discernible. Interior of the church is totally embellished with
the mural painting decoration.

CURRENT CONDITION: The territory is currently occu-
pied by Russia, because of which it is impossible to study the
current condition and to conduct adequate works.

NEW-ATHONI MONASTERY HAS BEEN GIVEN
THE STATUS OF CULTURE HERITAGE MONUMENT
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List of Georgian cultural heritage monument on the territory of Abkhazia
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# Name of monument Date Of. Location of monument Category of
construction monument
municipality of Gagra

1. Church-monastery Early middle ages Village of Sulevo

2. Greek church 19th —c. Small town of Gantiadi

3. Basilica of Gantiadi 7th c. Small town of Gantiadi jontm ent of
national importance

4. Church Early middle ages Small town of Gantiadi

5. Complex of Bichvinta 10th -12th cc. Small town of Bichvinta

6. Domed church 10th c. Small town of Bichvinta jnonutm ent of
national importance

7. church Middle ages Small town of Bichvinta monument of
national importance

8. church Middle ages Small town of Bichvinta jnonuim ent of
national importance

9. Ruins of church Middle ages Small town of Bichvinta montm ent of
national importance

10. The monastic complex Middle ages Small town of Bichvinta jnonutm ent of
national importance

11. Ruins of Basilica Church Small town of Bzipi

89




Village of Psirtskha,

12. Bzipi’s church and fortress 8th -10th cc. Small town of Bzipi
13. The church of three apses . Village of Alakhadzi
early middle ages
14. Ruins of church middle ages Town O.f Gagra, populated
lidzava-Tevri
. Town of Gagra, Street
15. Tower middle ages October No68
Town of Gagra, Gagripshis
16. Ruins of church middle ages Valley
17. Greek church 19th -20th cc. Town of Gagra, the Alps
road 6 km.
18. St. Eupatius’s cave Middle ages Town of Gagra, Tsizevras
Valley
19. Basilica church 6th- 7th cc. Town of Gagra jnonut ent of
national importance
20. Gagra’s central park Town of Gagra
21. Old agricultural garden in Gagra Town of Gagra
municipality of Gudauta
22. church Middle ages Village of Khopi, 3 km
north-west.
23. church Late middle ages Village of kulanurkhva
24. The domed church 10th- 11th cc. Village of Psirtskha,
surroundings
95, St. Simeon the Canaanite’s Basilica 10th- 11th cc. Village of P§1rtskha,
surroundings
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26. Fortress Middle ages .
surroundings
27. Fortress 14th -15th cc. Village of Ps'1rtskha,
surroundings
28. Other buildings Middle ages Village of Psirtskha,
surroundings
29. fortress Middle ages Village of Otkhara
first half of the 2 .
30. Dolmens Mill B.C. Village of Otkhara
31. The domed church 9th -10th cc. Village of Likhni monument of
national importance
32. Shervashidze’s palace 9th -10th cc. and Village of Likhni monument of
national importance
19th cc.
33. Other buildings 19th c. Village of Likhni monument of
national importance
34, “Aba-ta” church Middle ages Village of Likhni (west) monument of
national importance
35. Fence Middle ages Village of kalgakhvara monum ent of
national importance
36. Tower Middle ages Village of kalgakhvara jnonutm ent of
national importance
37. church Middle ages Village of kalgakhvara jnonutm ent of
national importance
38. Other buildings Middle ages Village of kalgakhvara jnonutm ent of
national importance
39. “Hasan-Taba” fortress Middle ages Vllla.ge. O.f ka’lgakhvara
(Bzipi river’s gorge)
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Village of kalgakhvara

40. Stella with Arabian Inscription Middle ages Museum of Boarding
School

Village of Zvandripshi, the
41. Church Middle ages place «Apsarkhu»
42. Fortress Middle ages Village .Of D’urlp shi (Khipsa

river’s valley)
43. Cave Middle ages Village of Barmishi
44, “Seri Baba” Church Middle ages Vlllagg ofBambora,
riverside
Village of
45, Dolmens first half of the Achandara, Ivan monument of
second Mill. B.C. ., . . } .

Shamugia’s residential land | national importance

46. St. Simeon the Canaanite’s cave Early middle ages | Village of Anukhva, (south-
east)

Village of Anukhva, (south-
47. Church Middle ages east)
48, Cell 19th c. Village of Anukhva

(centre)

49. Church 8th -9th cc. Village Ambara (east side)
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50, Palace 10th c. Village of Ambara (east
side)
middle ages Village of Ambara (east
51. Fence .
side)
52. Fortress middle ages Village of Abgarkhuqi
Town of New Athoni monument of
53. Lower Fortress Middle ages (Apsara) mountain . :
national importance
Town of New Athoni monument of
54. Upper fortress Middle ages (Apsara) mountain national importance
55 Church 8th-9th e, T(()X nsta;\InTguﬁzi?lm monument of
’ rebuilt 19th c. P national importance
Town of New Athoni monument of
56. Other buildings Middle ages (Apsara) mountain . :
national importance
57. Tower Middle ages Town O.f NeW Athoni,
riverside
second half of
58. St. Panteleimon’s monastery 19th c. Town of New Athoni
9th -10th cc.
. - Rebuilt
59, St. Simeon the Canaanite’s church second half of Town of New Athoni monument of
national importance
19th c.
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municipality of Sokhumi

60. New —Athoni park Town of New Athoni
61. The domed church 6th -7th cc. Village of Dranda jnonut ent of
national importance
62. church middle ages Village of Babushara
63. Garden of Gulripshi Small town of Gulripshi
municipality of Ochamchire
64. Adagua’s Mountain Church middle ages Village of Jgerda
65, church 10th c. Village of Mokw, monument of
surroundings national importance
66. Bell tower Late middle ages Village of MOle’ onum ent of
surroundings national importance
67. The Single-nave church 11th c. Village of Ilori ontm ent of
national importance
68. Bell tower Late middle ages Village of Ilori onum ent of
national importance
69. Fence Late middle ages Village of Ilori nonum ent of
national importance
70. “Marmalabaa” church Late middle ages Village ofA(‘izme &
surroundings
71. The Domed church 10th- 13th cc. Village of Agubedia, ontm ent of
surroundings national importance
72. Bell tower 13th -14th cc. Village ongubedla, jnontm ent of
surroundings national importance
73 Palace middle ages Village of Agubedla, monument of
surroundings national importance
74. Other buildings middle ages Village of Agubedia, monument of

surroundings

national importance
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75. The ruins of virgin’s church middle ages Village of (lower) Birtskha

76. Fortress middle ages Village of Fskhe

77. Saint George’s church 20th c. Village of Pavlovskoe

78. The ruins of virgin’s church middle ages Village of Odishi

79. St. Ilia’s church 20th c. Village of Nakhshira

80. The ruins of St. Panaias’ s church middle ages Village of Nakhshira

81. Transfiguration Church 19th c. Village of Mtiskalta

82. Ruins of church 19th- 20th cc. Village of Mtiskalta

83. church 19th- 20th cc. Village of Kelasuri

84. Castel middle ages Village of Kamani (east)

85. St. John Chrysostom’s church Early middle ages Village of Kamani

86. Ruins of church Early middle ages | village of (upper) lashtkhva

87. church 19th c. Village of (upper) Eshera

88. St. Demetrius’s church 20th c. village of (upper ) Birtskha

89. Castel middle ages Village of Gumismta
Ruins of fortress .

20. middle ages Village of Gumismta

91. Ruins of fortress middle ages Village of Guma (north)
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92. Saint George’s church 19th c. Village of Besleti
93. Church Middle Ages Village of Besleti
94. Saint Teodora’s church Early Middle Ages Village of Akhalsheni
95. Ruins of fortress middle ages Village of Akhalsheni
96. St. John Chrysostom’s chapel Late Middle Ages Village of Akhalsheni
97. Saint George’s church 20th c. Village of Achandara
Saint Elia’s church
98. 1910 year Village of Amzara
99. Synagogue of Sokumi 20th c. Town of Sokhumi
100. Dioscuria fortress second Mill. B.C. Town of Sokhumi ontm ent of
national importance
101. Bridge of Besleti 12th-13th cc. Town of Sokhuml, nonum ent of
surroundings national importance
municipality of Gali
102. Church 19th c. Village of Chkhortoli
103. Church 19th c. Village of Oqumi
104. Church 19th c. Village of Tsarche
105. Church 19th c. Village of Gumurishi
106. Saint George’s church 19th c. Village of Chuburkhinji
107. fortress Early Middle Ages Village of Tsarche
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